Constitution and By-Laws of the

Congregation Agudas Shalom

corner Walnut and Fourth Sts.

Chelsea, MA

Established in 1909 (5669)

Standard Press

28 Everett Ave, Chelsea

Table of Contents

Article	Page
1 - Name and Customs of Congregation	3
2- The Leaders of the Congregation	3
3 - Times of Meetings	4
4 - Nomination of Officers	5
5 – Times of Election	6
6- Installation of Officers	8
7- Duties and Powers of Board of Directors	9
8 – Duties and Powers of President	11
9- Duties and Powers of Vice President	13
10- Duties of Treasurer	13
11- Duties of Recording Secretary	15
12- Duties of Finance Secretary	16
13- Duties and Powers of Members	19
14- Fines and Penalties	24
15- Admission of Members	27
16- Duties of Finance Committee	28
17- Duties of Building Committee	29
18- Duties of Printing Committee	29
19- Electing A Rabbi and Cantor	30
20- Duties of Sexton and Collector	30
21- Order of Meeting	35
22 - Officer of Congregation	36

- 1. This community shall be named "Congregation Agudas Shalom of Chelsea, Mass." and shall conduct itself in a strictly Orthodox manner. The Congregation shall consist of a study house, a synagogue for prayers and everything shall operate in accordance with Jewish religion. And in conformance with all of the Jewish laws and customs of other Jewish Orthodox Congregations, and this paragraph shall not be altered as long as there are 7 members in good standing that are content in upholding the charter of this Congregation.
- 2. The meetings and the books of this Congregation are to be conducted in Yiddish or English interchangeably.

Article 2

1. The leaders of this Congregation shall consist of a President, Vice President, 1 Chairman, 1 Treasurer, 1 Finance Secretary, 1 Recording Secretary, and 20 Directors that hold the name Board of Directors. The Board shall elect a Chairman by secret proxy on its first meeting. The Chairman shall oversee all of the meetings of the Board. He shall sign all of the vouchers to pay the bills that are created by the Board of Directors, as well as all other important relevant documents on behalf of the Congregation. In the event that the Chairman is absent, the President shall preside over the meetings in his absence, or a temporary Chairman shall be elected by the Board to manage those meetings.

Article 3

1. General meetings for the Congregation shall be held on the first Sunday of the months January, April, July, October and December. The President shall preside over these meetings as well as any other special meetings of this Congregation, should the need of such meetings arise. 25 members in

good standing shall be considered a quorum to negotiate on behalf of the Congregation.

2. The weekly meetings of the Board of Directors shall take place on a mutually agreed evening excluding Friday night. Eleven participants shall be considered a quorum and oversee to the needs of the Congregation.

Article 4

- 1. The nomination of President, Vice President, Treasurer, Finance Secretary and Recording Secretary, should be held yearly by the Board of Directors at the last meeting of November and no more than 3 candidates per office can be nominated by the Board and only by secret ballot.
- 2. Members have the right to nominate two candidates for each office, namely President, Vice President, Treasurer, Finance Secretary and Recording Secretary. These nominations shall take place in December at the regular meeting and also by secret ballot.
- 3. Every member in good standing has the right to nominate one candidate for each office and not more.
- 4. The nomination for Board of Directors shall take place by the membership in the month of December. No less than twenty and no more than thirty candidates shall be nominated by the members.
- 5. The nomination of a Sexton shall be held by the Board of Directors in the month of March. A second nomination shall be held by the members when elections are held.
- 6. The nomination and election of a Cantor shall take place when the membership will find it necessary for the need of a Cantor and only then shall notice be given of a special meeting to be held by the Congregation for that purpose

Article 5

1. The elections for Officers and Board of Directors shall be held each year on the first Sunday of every January for this Congregation.

- 2. All of the nominated candidates of the various offices must be present at the time of elections. Otherwise, they cannot be elected.
- 3. All of the elected officers must attend the meetings of the membership as well as all of the Board of Directors meetings.
- 4. At the time of election, the membership should first elect twenty Directors, thereafter. President. Vice President. Treasurer and two Secretaries.
- 5. All of the Officers shall be elected by a majority vote.
- 6. No one person can hold two offices.
- 7. Before the elections, the President shall appoint three members to be in charge of collecting and counting the votes. Candidates cannot be one of those appointed members.
- 8. New members may not run for office in this Congregation for the first six months of their membership.
- 9. The term of all officers shall be valid for one year.
- 10. All officers must be free of any financial obligations on the books of the Congregation before being installed.
- 11. Any candidate that is under investigation cannot hold office until the Board of Directors or the Peace Committee give their not guilty verdict about said person at the regular Board of Directors meeting.

- 1. At the first meeting after the yearly elections, the newly elected Chairman shall install all of the officers and then appoint various committees as follows:
 - a building committee
 - a finance committee
 - a printing committee
 - investigation committee
 - a sick committee
 - a peace committee

in order to conduct properly the business of the Congregation.

1. When a member of the Board is absent of the meetings for 3 consecutive times, then the secretary shall notify that member that he must attend next meeting and give an explanation why he failed to show up to those Board meetings. In case that he is absent or does not have a satisfactory explanation for his absence, then the Chairman shall vacate his place on the Board and shall call a special meeting of the Board to elect another member in good standing in his place until the yearly election shall take place. The election shall be by secret ballot.

Article 7

Duties and Powers of the Board of Directors

- 1. No one has the right to spend money, or pay bills before it is appropriated at the Board of Directors meeting and approved by the finance committee.
- 2. The Board of Directors shall have the right to spend money for all of the building needs and to pay salaries to all paid officers but for any other expenditures, they or the President have a right to spend no more than five dollars.
- 3. The Board of Directors shall act upon all applications for membership, as well as all of the paid officers. The have the right to grant or suspend membership and in no case shall it necessitate more than three votes to reject a member.
- 4. The Board of Directors shave have control over the building property, books, papers, furniture and everything else in the building. They shall make sure that everything shall be in order and saved.
- 5. The Board of Directors shall have the full authority to collect bills from members and non members by law, should they deem it necessary to act upon it.
- 6. The Board of Directors shall provide the candidates, receive applications and establish the wages for paid officers, as well as sign agreements with a Cantor, Sexton or any other paid officer that shall be elected by the membership.

- 7. The Board of Directors have the right at any given time to inspect the books by the Secretary, Treasurer and Sexton if they find in necessary to do so.
- 8. The Board of Directors have the right to instruct the President of this Congregation to call a special meeting of the membership at any given time it is so decided upon by the Board of Directors.
- 9. All applications regarding the Congregation's building shall be addressed by the Board of Directors who have the authority to deal with it,

Duties and Powers of the President

- 1. It is the obligation of the President to enforce the rules and regulations of this Congregation in the times of the prayer services and in general.
- 2. The President shall have full power over the hall and the rooms of the shul to rent out the hall for various religious ventures. He also has the right to allow usage of the hall or the rooms gratis to whomever he wants to if the need arises. He must notify the Board of Directors before he gives his permission to do so.
- 3. It is the obligation of the President to call all of the regular and special meetings of the membership. It is also his obligation to call a special meeting of the Board when he receives a written request by 8 Board members in good standing within 24 hours to do so.
- 4. Special meetings can be called by the President or by a petition signed by no less than 25 members in good standing of this Congregation, but they must clearly specify the reason for calling the meeting.
- 5. When the President calls for a special meeting of the membership and those 25 members that signed the petition to call the meeting do no show up, then the President has the full power to fine them no less than 1 dollar and no more than 3 dollars, unless they have a legitimate excuse for not attending the meeting.

Duties and Powers of the Vice President

- 1. The Vice President shall assist the President in all of his responsibilities. In the absence of the President, he shall stand in for the President. One third of all of the committees appointed by the President, belongs to the Vice President.
- 2. The Vice President shall be the Chairman of the trustees of the Shul, he should take care and help the President with the trustees, to keep order in the time of ???? service.

Article 10

- 1. Before the Treasurer takes office he shall post a bond to the Congregation that should satisfy the Board of Directors for an amount that they shall determine.
- 2. The Treasurer shall oversee all of the funds that are received by the Congregation through the Finance Secretary or when some else give him money for the Congregation. He shall issue receipts and note it his book from whom he received the money and for what purpose.
- 3. The Treasurer shall pay out all of the vouchers created by the Board of Directors' meetings and approved by the Chairman and the Financial Secretary. In the absence of the Chairman, the temporary Chairman shall sign the vouchers. Without such a voucher, he cannot pay out any monies.
- 4. The treasurer of this Congregation must deposit all or the monies in a Trust company or a National bank in the name of the Congregation and shall pay out all of the vouchers with checks in the name of the Congregation.
- 5. The Treasurer shall record every income and expense regularly and every paid voucher shall be kept for inspection by the Finance committee, when they review the books of the Shul, as well as his own book recordings to verify the balances that are in the Treasury of this Congregation.
- 6. He shall have his book and vouchers made available on a regular basis to

- be examined by the President, Board of Directors, Finance Committee other any other special committee appointed by the Congregation.
- 7. Before the Treasurer leaves office, he must hand over to the Board of Directors all of the monies, books, papers or other things that are in his possession that belong to the Congregation.
- 8. In case the Treasurer cannot come to a meeting with the Finance Committee, he shall send his books, vouchers and his report to said meeting.

Duties of the Recording Secretary

- 1. The Recording Secretary shall be sworn in before being instituted, that he will manage the office devotedly. It is his obligation to keep records of everything that is devised at the Board of Directors' meetings as well as at the meetings of the membership. He shall hold on to all of the minutes, all negotiations, to read all of the communications that is brought in or mailed in to the Congregation.
- 2. The Recording Secretary must be present at all of the meetings of the Congregation of the Board of Directors and the membership.
- 3. When the Recording Secretary leaves office he shall transfer to his successor all of the books in proper order and all of the papers in his possession that belong to the Congregation.

Article 12

Duties of the Financial Secretary

1. The Financial Secretary shall be sworn in before being installed in his office. He shall sign all of the orders to the Treasurer that need to be paid and those invoices created by the Board of Directors to be paid. He shall notify every member when a regular or special meeting is to take place in this Congregation. He shall also notify each new member when he gets accepted and to hand over a copy of the current by-laws of the Congregation. To every regular meeting of the membership he shall send

- to each member his total outstanding balance owed to the Congregation. He must be present at all the meetings of the Board and the membership,
- 2. He shall keep the books of the Congregation current. He should properly process the income and expenses. He shall integrate all of the monies into the books systematically. On the first of each month he should create invoices and forward them to the Sexton for collection. All of the pledges, promises and Aliyos he should make sure to record and at the membership meeting he should review his report and notify the members of the situation of the Congregation.
- 3. He shall keep records of of the weddings held in the Shul. He should also have a list of all of the seat holders.
- 4. The Financial Secretary shall keep the up books, papers, and documents that the Congregation entrusted him with. His books shall always be prepared for inspection when and if required by the Board of Directors or the Finance Committee.
- 5. When the Financial Secretary leaves office, he shall transfer to his successor or to the Board of Directors all of the books, papers and documents that he was entrusted with, in good order.
- 6. Before the Financial Secretary take office he must post a surety bond for the amount to be determined by the Board of Directors.

Duties and Powers of the Members

- 1. Membership fees for members of this Congregation shall be 12 dollars per year and shall be paid 1 dollar per month by each member.
- 2. When a member does not pay for 3 consecutive months, he shall be in arrears and lose his right to speak, debate or vote at the meetings of this Congregation.
- 3. When a member misses 6 consecutive payments he shall be ready for suspension, unless the Board of Directors has reason to continue his membership.

- 4. Each member has the right to purchase a single or double seat without any extra charge or assessment for the seat or the double seat for the same 12 dollar dues.
- 5. In case a member, a seat holder, terminates his membership, he shall pay an assessment fee for each seat of 3 dollars annually. The payment falls due one week before Rosh Hashana annually for members and non members alike.
- 6. When a member, a seat holder, is in arrears and does not settle his account 4 weeks before Rosh Hashana, the Secretary shall notify him that if he doesn't make good and pay what he owes within a week, then his seat or seats shall be rented to someone else before Rosh Hashana and the income from the rental shall be credited against his debt and the same process shall be done with a non member seat holder.
- 7. When a seat holder wants to sell his seat or seats, he must notify the Board of Directors and the Board of Directors can by them for the Congregation. In the event that the Board of Directors does not want to buy the seat/s, then the seat holder may sell his seat/s to a person that is acceptable to the Board of Directors and that person must pay 5 percent of the sale price to the Congregation for changing the deed and record.
- 8. When a seat holder owes the Congregation 25 dollars per seat for dues, pledges or fines, or 50 dollars for a double seat, he shall receive a notice via registered letter stating that if he will not pay his debt within 90 days, his seat/s shall be sold and the proceeds shall go towards his debt plus the expenses incurred through the sale and the remainder, should there be any money leftover, shall be given to the seat holder.
- 9. When someone buys a seat or seats to be paid out, he must pay a 20% down payment of the price of the seat or seats and then make 5% of the price of the seat/s as a monthly payment. If he fails to make said payment in time, he shall be charged 6% interest for the missing payments and the interest shall be due one week before Rosh Hashana each year, but under no circumstance shall the payments be allowed to elapse more than 3

years from the date of purchase.

- 10. When a seat holder, whether a member or not, does not conduct himself properly during the prayer service or at the time of reading the Torah and makes a tumult that is not appropriate for a holy place and can bring harm to the Congregation, and the President, Vice President or any of the Trustees of the Shul warned him 3 times that he should behave and he refused the order, then the President shall bring charges to the Board of Directors. The charged member shall be give 14 days to appear for a hearing and if after an investigation he shall be found at fault, then that person's right to enter the build of this Congregation shall be revoked and his seat or seats shall be auctioned according to Section 8 Paragraph 13.
- 11. When a member commits a crime against the Congregation insofar as no longer to be suitable as a member in the community, then a written complain with 2 copies be brought to the Board of Directors and if a majority of the Board accepts the complaint, then the content should be transferred to the Peace Committee to deal with it. Their findings shall be forwarded to the Board of Directors within 14 days.
- 12. If a member is not happy with the findings of the Board of Directors, President or the Peace Committee, he has the full right to present his case to the membership at the next upcoming meeting.
- 13. When a member pledges money or is fined by the Congregation, the money shall fall due no later than 3 months from the date. If he does not pay within said period, that member shall be in arrears just like with his dues.
- 14. When a member of this Congregation would have a need for the Shul or the Hall of the Shul for a wedding, he shall pay \$10.00 for daytime and \$15.00 for nighttime. Should he require the Shul just to make a Chuppah, he shall pay only \$5.00 to the Congregation.
- 15. When a member is making a Bar Mitzvah or the Shabbos the the bridegroom gets called up to read the Torah and will want to distribute the Aliyot to his friends and family, then he shall pay \$5.00 for the privileges

Fines and Penalties

- 1. All of the fines that members incur for not behaving during the membership meetings can be waved by the President of the Congregation. All other fines can only be removed by the Congregation through a vote.
- 2. In the event that an officer of the Congregation misses 3 consecutive meetings without any proper reason for his absence, then his office shall be vacated by a vote of the Congregation.
- 3. Any member that calls a membership meeting and does not show up for the meeting, shall be fine one dollar unless he gives a reason accepted by the President.
- 4. Every Secretary that does no bring the books of either the membership or of the Board of Directors shall be fined one dollar.
- 5. Any member or officer that shall refuse to keep the meetings calm and serene or take his seat when he is asked by the President, Vice President or any other officer or if he creates a disturbance or quarrel, he shall be fined one dollar the first time, two dollars the second time and three dollars the third time. If he continues with his spat even after he was fined three times, he shall be suspended for no less than 30 days and no more than 60 days of the meeting.
- 6. When a member neglects to report to the Board of Directors about a sick member that he knows about or he doesn't visit a sick member of the Congregation after he was notified by the Secretary, he shall be fined 50 cents.
- 7. Any member that leaves in middle of a meeting, whether it is a members meeting or a Board meeting and breaks a quorum, shall be fined one dollar.
- 8. If a member does not come to order and does not take his seat at the time of prayer and reading the Torah when so ordered by the Trustees of the

Shul, and the Trustees report him to the Board of Directors by the meeting, that person shall be fine one dollar. The second time, the President shall appoint a committee to bring charges to the Board and if the member is found at fault, he shall be suspended for no less than 30 days and no more than 60 days of the meeting.

9. A member that does not attend a funeral of another member or a member's wife after being notified by the Secretary, he shall be fined one dollar, unless he has a reasonable explanation.

Article 15

- 1. Every Jew with a good character that behaves in a Jewish manner and is 18 years or older, can become a member of this Congregation.
- 2. Every Jew that wants to become a member shall bring in a written application with a one dollar proposition to the Board of Directors meeting. The proposition can be changed from time to time as the Board of Directors see fit. The candidates should be recommended by no less than two members of this Congregation and it should then be transferred to the investigative committee and it the next meeting when they bring in a report that is sincere then the candidate shall be elected by the Board.
- 3. Every person of this Congregation, that has been a member for more than 6 months and is in good standing on the books can be elected to any post if he is at all capable.
- 4. When a member in good standing is sitting Shiva, the Congregation shall make the utmost effort to make sure he has a minyan in his house.
- 5. Every good standing member shall receive all of the privileges and benefits of the membership.

Article 16

Duties and Finance Committee

1. The Finance Committee shall consist of 5 members of the Board of Directors. Their function is to examine all of the receivables of this

Congregation before they are paid out. And to examine all of the books of the Financial and Recording Secretaries, Treasurer and Sexton every 3 months or any other time that would be requested by the Board of Directors and to report back to the Board. They shall also help prepare the yearly report for the membership.

Article 17

Duties of the Building Committee

- 1. The Committee shall consist of 5 members of the Board of Directors. Their function is to oversee the building of the Congregation inside and outside, that everything should be properly maintained. They shall report at the meeting of the Board of Directors about the condition of the building and if there is any need of maintenance.
- 2. In the event that unusual damage is caused, that needs immediate repair, that otherwise might cause great loss to the Congregation, they have the right to make prompt repairs and to report it at the next meeting of the Board of Directors.

Article 18

Duties of the Printing Committee

1. The Committee shall consist of 3 members of the Board of Directors. Their function is to order all of the printing needs of the Congregation.

Article 19

Electing of a Rabbi and a Cantor

1. Elections for a Rabbi or a Cantor can only be done by calling a special meeting of the Congregation by giving the members 7 days notice, and two thirds of the members in good standing, that are present, vote that the Congregation should hire a Rabbi or Cantor, and their salaries are to be determined by the Board of Directors. They shall advertise for 30 days in any newspaper they will designate, that they are looking for a Rabbi or

Cantor.

2. The election of a Rabbi or Cantor shall be held at a special meeting, that was called for that purpose, and will get the position by a majority vote.

Article 20

Duties of a Sexton and Collector

- 1. Before a Sexton takes office from the Congregation he must put up a security deposit in the amount to be determined by the Board of Directors.
- 2. His task is to present all of the notices, papers, letters to members and everything else that belongs to the Congregation by the order of the President or the Board of Directors.
- 3. The Sexton shall attend and prepare everything that is needed for weddings, by order of the President or the Board of Directors.
- 4. The Sexton shall unlock and close up the Shul every morning and evening of the year at the times of prayers. He should make sure that the Torah scrolls are properly wrapped in their mantels. He shall distribute the Siddurim and Chumashim on Shabbos during the prayers and reading of the Torah to all of the attending members. He shall keep all of the Taleisim in order and shall tend to all of the needs in Shul.
- 5. The Sexton shall hire a janitor that should keep the building clean and orderly. He should make sure that it's warm in the winter, and shall remove the snow and ice around the building and in the summer the dust and dirt. When the Sexton is out collecting money, the janitor should be able to step in on all of the above mentioned tasks.
- 6. The Sexton shall prepare the halls for meetings of either the Board of Directors or the membership, when meetings are to be held as well as any other meetings that the Board shall determine they should be held in the Congregation. The Sexton must be present by the meetings of the Board of Directors as well as at the meetings of the membership. The Sexton has no right to replace anyone in his stead unless approved by the President or the Board of Directors. The keys to the building of the Congregation or any

- other articles belonging to the Shul must be relinquished by the Sexton at any such time as they are requested, at the Board of Directors meetings.
- 7. The Sexton shall collect all monies of the Congregation, such as dues, pledges and donations of all of the members as well as non members. Every week before the Board of Directors meeting, he shall record all of the collected funds into his cash book including the names and amounts collected and shall forward it to the Financial Secretary who shall sign a receipt for it. The Secretary shall credit each member for the amounts received, immediately following the meeting.
- 8. The Sexton shall receive 10% of all the monies collected on behalf of the Congregation except for those funds the he is not entitled to any percentages.
- 9. The Sexton has no right to deduct for himself from any of the monies collected throughout the week. He must forward to the Financial Secretary all of the funds recorded in his cash book.
- 10. The Board of Directors has the right to elect at their meeting an additional Collector to assist the Sexton to collect monies due the Congregation, should they find the need to do so.
- 11. The Sexton has no right to spend any of the Congregation's money or pay a bill unless the Board of Directors approved at their meeting for him to do so.
- 12. It is also the obligation of the Sexton to make sure that the building of the Congregation is in good repair at all times. In case of an accident in the building that requires immediate repair and cannot wait for the next meeting of the Board of Directors, he should immediately notify the President or the Chairman of the Building Committee and they should take the necessary steps to correct it.

All of these laws, articles, paragraphs or words, except the first article, which is secured by itself, shall never be changed, unless such change is requested in writing by 25 members in good standing of the Congregation, and proposed before the Board of Directors meeting. They shall then give 7 days legal

notice to all of the members to call a special meeting and the request passes with a 2/3 majority vote, that it shall become law in the Constitution of our Congregation.

All of the meetings should be held according to the Parliamentary rules.

Order of Meeting

- 1. Roll Call of Officers
- 2. Reading of Minutes
- 3. Correction of Minutes
- 4. Sick members and report of visit Committee
- 5. Suggestion of members
- 6. Welcoming new members
- 7. Committee report
- 8. Unfinished business
- 9. New business
- 10. Communications
- 11. Good and Best
- 12. Income and Expense

Officers of Congregation Agudas Shalom of Chelsea

Joseph Slotnik, President

Miner, Vice President

Harry Krantzman, Treasurer

S. Sandler, Financial Secretary

M. Kamenkowitz, Recording Secretary

H. Rubin, Collector

B. Guss, Janitor

Board of Directors

Eliyahu Blumberg, Chairman

G. Alpert L Lebowitz

G. Anshelowitz A. Levine

H. Blumberg Max Levine

J. Blumberg J. Levy

M.Blass J. Reznik

A Feinberg L.Schiowitz

J. Goldstein M.Stone

B. Horowitz C.Tinner

J. Krantzman Y. Widstsky

S. Krantzman J. Nimble

D. Luck

Names of Members

of

Congregation Agudas Shalom

Chelsea, MA

Abelowitz, Zalman Yosef

Alpert, Joseph

Levine, S

Alpert, Norman

Levine, Yosef

Anschulewitz, Yacov Gud

Arens, Charles

Levitt, S

Arens, Sam

Levy, Y

Aronowitz, Matesyahu Y.

Aronson, Joseph

Lindenblat, Isaac

Aronson, Nachum

Lipschitz, M

Baker, Moshe

Lokub, A

Baron, Zev Lowenthal, M Barr, Yitzchok Luck, Ch Bein, Zalman Luck, D Berenstein, Yitzchok Luck, J Lvevine, H Berger, Ezriel Berkman, Shmuel, Madov, H Berkowitz. Dov Madov. Isaac Berkowitz, Philip Madov, L

Berlin, Monish Madus

Berkowitz, Tzivia.

Berson, Michael Magid, Philip

Berson, Moshe Yitzchok Mamenkowitz, Michael

Madov. Mrs

Birnbaum, Morris Mann, A K
Blass, Max Mann, Philip
Blumberg, Eliyahu Margolin, M
Blumberg, Harry Margolis, M
Blumberg, James Markel, W
Blumberg, Mrs. Pesach z"l Meltzer, W

Borenstein. Efraim Gershon Mendelson, M Borenstein, Gedalye Minsky, Mrs Borenstein, Meir Morrison, M Braun. Isaac Napoleon, B Braun, Yitzchok Yacov Nathanson, J Braverman, Louis Natovsky, Ch Broker, Charles Natovsky, S Caro, David Nelson, S Carter, Moshe Nitke, A Chase, Mrs Nowitz, D Chefetz. Avrom Shlomo Nudelman, A Chernis, Mrs Oppenheim, J.

Cohen, Esther Pozner, J
Cohen, Isaac Reinhertz, Dr
Cohen, Shachne Reznik, B
Cohen, Yosef Eliyahu Reznik, J

Portnoy, B

Rose, S

Cohen, Benjamin

Feinsilver. M

Daniels. Moshe Nosen Reznik, L
Davidson, Tzvi Dovid Reznik. Moshe Leib

Dribin, Eliezer Reznik, R
Dribin, Yisroel Tzvi Richmond, P
Elbaum, Nachum Ringer, S
Falkoff, Menachem Monish Rogers, K
Feinberg, Asher Anshel Rogowin, B
Feinberg, H

Feinstein, M Dr Rosenberg, J

Finner, M Rosenberg, Yosef Aaron

Fleisher, J Rosenblum, Mr Forman, M Rosenfeld, Ph

Frank, Low Rosenthal, Avrohom

Freshman Ross, M
Fried, Ch Ross, Z
Friedman, L Rothstein, H
Friedman, N Rubik, D
Friedman, N Rubik, J

Friedman, S Rubin, N

Friedman, S Rubinstein, H
Friman, H Rubinstein, S
Glickstein, L Saipe, Harry
Godoss, Hirsh Salter, Albert

Goldberg, Ch Salter, Moshe Yitzchok

Goldberg, E. Dr Salter, Tuvia
Golde, Shlomo Sanderson, Yosef

Goldfarb, J Sandler, Shmuel Eliezer

Goldman Savitz, Benjamin
Goldman, M.L. Savitz, Harry
Goldman, M.Y. Savitz, Jake
Goldman, Y Savitz, Lewis

Goldstein, Charles Schaffer, Yehoshua Heshel

Goldstein, G. Schlossberg, Robert
Goldstein, P Schneirson, Yacov Tzvi

Golstein, J Schorr, Michal Golstein, M. N. Schwalb, Sam

Goodman, L Seigel, L
Goodman, Y Shalik, Yosef
Gordon, J Shapiro, Louis
Gordon, Morris Shapiro, Yosef

Greenberg, Charlie Sharf, Yitzchok Yacov Gringlas, Dov Aryeh Sherman, Shalom

Gross, M Siegel. A

Grotsky, S Simon, Yacov
Gruzin, M Slimowitz, J
Hamburger, Moshe Tzvi Sloan, Tzvi
Hechter, Isser Smith, Harry
Hendlin, Heshel Smith, Mrs
Hershenson, Aaron Snyder, Yosef
Hershon, Tzvi Sobel, Eliyahu

Horowitz, Dov Spitzer, S

Hillel, N

Horowitz, Elchanan Stalier, Elchanan

Horowitz, Lewy Steiman, Avrom Yitzchok

Solovai, Shabat

Israelim, Y. Y. P. Rabbi

Jacobs, Izidor

Kalifson, Pinchas

Kapelowitz, Zelig Kaplan, Eliezer Kaplan, Gershon

Kaplan, L

Kaplan, Moshe Dovid

Kaplan, Yehuda Leib Kaplan. M D

Kaplowitz, M Karna, Halevi

Kessel, M

Klubok, Yehoshua

Koltoff, Yerachmiel

Konikoff, L

Kopelman, Harry

Kraft, Morris

Krantzman, Harry

Krantzman, J Krantzman, R

Krantzman, Samuel

Kravitz, A

Kravitz, K

Kuratz, S A

Kutzen, Avrohom

Kutzen, Y

Lebowitz, S

Levin, Lewis

Levine, A

Levine. D A

Levine, Eliyahu

Levine, J

Levine, M

Stein. Simon B

Stone, Chaim Tzvi

Stone, Meir

Stronof, Zerach

Supowitz, Lewy

Supowitz, Villa

Tak, Nosson

Tamer, Nosson Nuta

Tiger, Chaim

Tiger, Moshe

Ushri, H.

Ushry, J.

Watchman, Ezriel

Weinstein, Ely

Weinstein, George

Widetsky, Shrga Feyvish

Widetsky, Yisroel

Witzky, Yedidyeh

Wolfson, Moshe

Wolpe, Gershon

Wolper, Moshe

Yaffa, Yacov

Yunis. Yacov

Zablatsky, Koppel

Zelkovitz, Chaim

Zimbel, Mordechai

Zimbel, Yehuda

Zlotnik, Aaron Shlomo

Zlotnik, Betzalel

Zlotnik, Isser

Zlotnik, Yosef

Zlotnik, Zev

Zokofsky, Shaya Leib